FILED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FEB 27 PM 4: 20 MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA US DISTRICT COURT MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA GREANDO, FLORIDA

BRANDY SHAFFER, on behalf of herself and others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,

٧.

CASE NO.:

6:17-cv-336-ORL-40KRS

NITRO GREEN INC., a Florida corporation, and CLINTON M. WOODS,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, BRANDY SHAFFER ("Plaintiff"), on behalf of herself and others similarly situated, hereby sues the Defendants, NITRO GREEN INC. ("Nitro Green") and CLINTON M. WOODS ("Woods") and alleges as follows:

JURISDICTION, VENUE AND PARTIES

- 1. This is an action brought under the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) ("FLSA"). Accordingly, this Court has subject-matter jurisdiction.
- 2. Venue is proper within the Middle District of Florida because a substantial part of the events giving rise to this claim arose here.
- 3. Defendants are employers as defined by the FLSA and operate and conduct business in this judicial district.
- 4. At all material times, Defendants were an enterprise covered by the FLSA, and as defined by 29 U.S.C. §203(r) and 203(s). Additionally, Plaintiff was engaged in interstate commerce during her employment with Defendants.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

- 5. Defendant Nitro Green, a company that performs landscaping and ground maintenance services in Volusia County, was/is a Florida Profit Corporation authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida, with its principal place of business at 406 Bostrom Lane, Ormond Beach, FL 32174.
- 6. Defendant Woods is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Nitro Green. In that position, Woods exercises significant control over the company's operations, has the power to hire and fire employees, the power to determine salaries, the responsibility to maintain employment records and has operational control over significant aspects of the company's day-to-day functions. As such, he is an employer as defined by the FLSA.
- 7. At all material times, Defendants were an enterprise covered by the FLSA, and as defined by 29 U.S.C. §203(r) and 203(s) and during all relevant times had at least two employees and had an annual dollar volume of sales or business done of at least \$500,000.
- 8. Plaintiff, who was employed by Defendant during the relevant time period as an office manager/bookkeeper, was engaged in interstate commerce during her employment with Defendants.
- 9. This action is brought under the FLSA to recover unpaid overtime compensation and minimum wages owed to Plaintiff and all others similarly situated who are or were employed by Defendant as office managers and/or bookkeepers.
- 10. Plaintiff and others similarly situated were employees of Defendant under the FLSA.
 - 11. Defendant failed to comply with the FLSA because Plaintiff, and other

similarly situated employees, were regularly required to work in excess of forty (40) hours a workweek but were not paid overtime compensation as required by the FLSA.

- 12. Moreover, Defendants failed to use the proper regular rate for purposes of calculating overtime compensation for cable installer/technicians.
- 13. The additional persons who may become Plaintiffs in this action are employees who held positions similarly situated to Plaintiff and who were required to work in excess of forty (40) hours a workweek but were not paid overtime compensation as required by the FLSA.
- 14. Defendant's violations of the FLSA were knowing, willful and in reckless disregard of the rights of Plaintiff and all other similarly situated.
- 15. Plaintiff has been required to retain the undersigned counsel to represent her in this action and is obligated to pay them a reasonable fee for their services.

COUNT I <u>OVERTIME – FLSA</u>

- 16. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 to 15 as if fully restated herein.
- 17. During the three (3) year period prior to filing this action, Defendant failed to pay Plaintiff and all other similarly situated employees overtime compensation for hours worked over forty (40) in a workweek.
- 18. Defendant's failure to pay Plaintiff and all other similarly situated employees overtime compensation for hours worked over forty (40) in any workweek constitutes a violation of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 207.
 - 19. Defendant's violations of the FLSA were knowing, willful and in reckless

disregard of the rights of Plaintiff and all other similarly situated.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, that this Court issue an Order awarding damages in the amount of the unpaid overtime compensation owed, awarding liquidated damages pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), awarding reasonable attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), and awarding all such other relief as the Court deems just and appropriate.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiff demand trial by jury as to all issues.

DATED this 24th day of February, 2017.

Respectfully submitted,
WHITTEL & MELTON, LLC
/s/ Jay P. Lechner
Jay P. Lechner, Esq.
Florida Bar No.: 0504351
Jason M. Melton, Esq.
Florida Bar No.: 605034
One Progress Plaza
200 Central Avenue, #400
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701
Telephone: (727) 822-1111
Engsimilar (727) 809 2001

Facsimile: (727) 898-2001 Service Email:

Pleadings@theFLlawfirm.com lechnerj@theFLlawfirm.com shelley@theFLlawfirm.com Attorneys for Plaintiff

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the

purpose of initiating the civil do	ocket sheet. (SEE INSTRUC	TIONS ON NEXT PAGE C	OF THIS FO		_				
I. (a) PLAINTIFFS BRANDY SHAFFER (b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff VOLUSIA (EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (c) Attorneys (Firm Name. Address, and Telephone Number) Whittel and Melton 727-822-1111 Jay P. Lechner, Esq. 200 Central Ave, #400 St. PEtersburg, FL 33701				DEFENDANTS NITRO GREEN, INC., and CLINTON M. WOODS County of Residence of First Listed Defendant VOLUSIA (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED. Attorneys (If Known)					
☐ I U.S. Government	☑ 3 Federal Question		(For Diversity Cases Only)			and One Box f	or Defendanti	"	
Plaintiff	(U.S. Government Not a Party)		Citiz	=	KI MI	Incorporated or Pri of Business In T			DEF X 4
2 U.S. Government Defendant	Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)		Citiza	en of Another State	02 0 2	! Incorporated and P of Business In A		0 5 0	o 5
				en or Subject of a Creign Country	3 0 3	Foreign Nation		O 6 C	o 6
IV. NATURE OF SUIT	(Place an "X" in One Box O	dy)							=
O 110 Insurance	PERSONAL INJURY	PERSONAL INJUR		DREET URB/PENALTIXE 5 Drug Related Seizure		nkrupreyassessa peal 28 USC 158	375 False C		District.
☐ 120 Marine ☐ 130 Miller Act ☐ 140 Negotiable Instrument	O 310 Airplane O 315 Airplane Product Liability	☐ 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability ☐ 367 Health Care/		of Property 21 USC 881 0 Other	CJ 423 Wil		☐ 400 State R ☐ 410 Antitru ☐ 430 Banks a	eapportionme st	eni
☐ 150 Recovery of Overpayment	🗇 320 Assault, Libel &	Pharmaceutical	ŀ			REPORTED TO SERVE	450 Commo	erce	
& Enforcement of Judgment [] 151 Medicare Act	Slander 330 Federal Employers*	Personal Injury Product Liability			☐ 820 Coj ☐ 830 Pat		460 Deporta		d and
☐ 152 Recovery of Defaulted	Liability	368 Asbestos Persona	·		☐ 840 Tra		Corrupt	t Organization	
Student Loans (Excludes Veterans)	340 Marine 345 Marine Product	Injury Product Liability		A STATE OF THE STA	Z E SOCIA	LESE COURT DATE OF THE PROPERTY OF	☐ 480 Consur ☐ 490 Cable/S		
☐ 153 Recovery of Overpayment	Liability	PERSONAL PROPE		0 Fair Labor Standards	O 861 HL	A (1395ff)	☐ 850 Securit	ies/Commodi	ities/
of Veteran's Benefits [] 160 Stockholders' Suits	350 Motor Vehicle 355 Motor Vehicle	370 Other Fraud371 Truth in Lending	0 72	Act O Labor/Management		ck Lung (923) VC/DIWW (405(g))	Exchar 890 Other S		ions
☐ 190 Other Contract	Product Liability	380 Other Personal		Relations	Ø 864 SSI	D Title XVI	391 Agricul	ltural Acts	
☐ 195 Contract Product Liability ☐ 196 Franchise	☐ 360 Other Personal Injury	Property Damage 385 Property Damage		0 Railway Labor Act 1 Family and Medical	D 865 RS	(405(g))	893 Enviror		
	☐ 362 Personal Injury -	Product Liability		Leave Act	1		Act	•!···	
REALPROPERTY	Medical Malpractice	PRISONER PETITIO		0 Other Labor Litigation 11 Employee Retirement	FAFRDR	EALSTAX SUITS TO	O 896 Arbitra O 899 Admini		edure
☐ 210 Land Condemnation	1 440 Other Civil Rights	Habeas Corpus:		Income Security Act	☐ 870 Tax	es (U.S. Plaintiff		view or Appe	al of
220 Foreclosure	☐ 441 Voting ☐ 442 Employment	463 Alien Detainee510 Motions to Vacate	.			Defendant) Third Party	Agency 950 Constit	Decision	
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 240 Torts to Land	O 443 Housing/	Sentence	'			USC 7609	State St		
245 Tort Product Liability	Accommodations	530 General	723-55-5	MIMMIGRATION TO THE PARTY OF TH					
290 All Other Real Property	 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment 	535 Death Penalty Other:		2 Naturalization Application					
	446 Amer. w/Disabilities -	☐ 540 Mandamus & Oth	er 🖸 46	5 Other Immigration					
	Other 448 Education	550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition	l	Actions			ļ.		
		560 Civil Detaince -			1				
		Conditions of Confinement	1						
V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" is	One Box Only)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			T				
🕱 1 Original 🗇 2 Rei	moved from 3 te Court	Remanded from Appellate Court	□ 4 Rein Reop		ferred from er District	6 Multidistr Litigation			
	Cite the U.S. Civil St	itute under which you a	re filing (Do not cite jurisdictional st		diversity):			
VI. CAUSE OF ACTIO	Brief description of C								
VII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.				EMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND: Yes No					
VIII. RELATED CASE	E(S)			-			-		
IF ANY	(See instructions):	JUDGE			DOCK	ET NUMBER _			
DATE 02/24/2018		signature of at /s/ Jay P. Lech		OF RECORD					
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY		iai Jay F. Lecili							—
	MOUNT	APPLYING IFP		JUDGE		MAG. JUI	OGE		

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: Florida Landscapers Nitro Green Facing Lawsuit over Unpaid Overtime